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CRIMINAL JUSTICE STANDARDS & TRAINING COMMISSION 
TECHNICAL MEMO 2010-06 
 
TO:  Criminal Justice Agencies 
  Criminal Justice Training Schools 
 
FROM: Program Director Michael D. Crews 
  Criminal Justice Professionalism Program 
 
SUBJECT: 2010 Legislative Changes 
 
 
During the 2010 Legislative Session, House Bill 951 was passed and signed by Governor Crist.  
The legislation includes several changes to Chapter 943, Florida Statutes, affecting officers, 
employing agencies and training schools.  The changes are outlined below and a copy of the 
relevant sections of the legislation is attached to this memorandum.  The changes will be 
effective on July 1, 2010. 

1. Chapter 943.12(16), F.S., was amended to clarify the Commission’s authority to 
implement the firearms qualification standard for law enforcement officers.  After 
reviewing Rule 11B-27.00212(14), Florida Administrative Code,  the Joint Administrative 
Procedures Committee (JAPC) suggested the change to ensure the Commission’s 
authority in this area was clear. 

2. Chapter 943.131(2), F.S., was amended to clarify the authority of criminal justice 
selection centers to process exemptions from basic training (Equivalency-of-Training 
[EOT]) as well as a number of changes affecting EOT applicants and previously sworn 
Florida Officers. 

Chapters 943.256 and 943.2565, F.S. give the criminal justice selection centers the 
authority to evaluate candidates for employment in the criminal justice system.  They 
were added to Chapter 943.131(2), F.S. to clarify that an EOT can be processed by 
either a criminal justice employing agency or a criminal justice selection center. 
 
An existing problem with an out-of-state or federal officer applicant who was a previously 
sworn Florida officer, but had not been employed in Florida for more than 8 years was 
corrected.  The issue was that a previously sworn Florida officer with more than an 8 
year break in service was not eligible for an EOT as a previously sworn Florida officer 
due to the break in service.  If they had not completed equivalent basic recruit training in 
another state or through the federal government, they were also not eligible for an EOT 
as an out-of-state or federal officer because of the wording in the statute requiring 
equivalent training for out-of-state or federal officers.  Completion of a Florida basic 
recruit training program was added as a qualifying equivalent training to resolve this 
issue. 
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Pursuant to current statute, to be eligible for an EOT, out-of-state and federal officers 
could have no more than an 8 year break in service as measured from the separation 
from their most recent qualifying employment to the date a completed application 
requesting an EOT was submitted.  Florida officers were treated differently.  Chapter 
943.1395(3), F.S., mandated that they be reemployed within 8 years of their most recent 
separation regardless of when they applied for an EOT or they would have to complete a 
full basic recruit training academy.  Chapter 943.131(2), F.S., was amended to treat 
previously sworn Florida officers the same as out-of-state/federal officers in regard to 
calculating an 8 year break in service for purposes of being eligible for an EOT.  
 
Currently, an applicant for an EOT is required to complete the demonstration of 
proficiency in the high liability skills and pass the State Officer Certification Examination 
(SOCE) within 1 year of being approved for the EOT.  If they fail to complete the 
requirements within the 1 year time limit, they must complete a basic recruit training 
academy.  Chapter 943.131(2), F.S., was amended to allow an applicant who fails to 
complete the requirements within the 1 year time limit to apply for another EOT.  The 
applicant would have to submit a new application through a criminal justice employing 
agency or criminal justice selection center and still be eligible under the applicable 
rules/statutes in place at the time of application. 

3. Chapter 943.1395(3), F.S., was amended to remove language regarding the 8 year 
break in service for previously sworn Florida officers and added a reference back to 
Chapter 943.131(2), F.S.   

4. Chapter 943.17(1)(g), F.S., was amended to remove the requirement to complete a 
basic skills examination (BAT) for students entering a correctional probation basic recruit 
training program.  The BAT provided very little screening value for the program as a 4 
year degree is a state job class requirement to be a correctional probation officer.. 

Frequently Asked Questions 

1. If the statute was changed to clarify the Commission’s authority to implement a firearms 
qualification standard, is the current standard valid? 

Yes.  JAPC simply suggested that statutory language specifically stating the 
authority would serve to ensure there was no confusion. Commission staff 
asserted and JAPC agreed that pursuant to the existing statute language, the 
Commission had the authority to implement the qualification standard.  

2. How do the changes affecting an 8 year break in service apply to Florida officers? 

The change means that the 8 year break in service will be measured the same 
for out-of-state/federal officers and for previously sworn Florida officers.  This 
measurement will be from the date of separation from their most recent qualifying 
employment to the date they submit a completed application for an EOT. 
 

Currently, a previously sworn Florida officer can apply for an EOT at any time 
prior to being separated from a sworn employment for 8 years.  However, the 
time for determining an 8 year break does not stop upon application for an EOT.   
 



Memo 2010-06 
June 30, 2010 
Page 3 

Under the provisions for the EOT, the officer would technically have 1 year to 
complete the requirements of the EOT, but they would also have to be 
reemployed in a sworn position prior to having an 8 year break in service.  If the  
8 year break in service occurs, even though the officer has time remaining on the 
EOT, pursuant to Chapter 943.1395(3), F.S., they have to compete a basic 
recruit training program.   

3. What happens if a previously sworn Florida officer does not apply for an EOT prior to 
having an 8 year break in service? 

There was no change in this situation.  The officer would have no option but to 
complete a basic recruit training program in order to be eligible to take the 
SOCE. 

4. As a previously sworn Florida officer, if I am unable to complete the requirements of the 
EOT within the 1 year time limit, will I be allowed to apply for another EOT? 

Yes, provided at the time of application for the second EOT, you do not have an 
8 year break in service. 

5. How will this change affect previously sworn Florida officers who, before July 1, 2010, 
applied for an EOT prior to having an 8 year break in service, but did not get employed 
prior to the 8 year break? 

The officer will be allowed to have the time remaining on their active EOT to 
complete the EOT and then, pursuant to Rule 11B-35.009(7), F.A.C., have 4 
years from the date they started the demonstration of proficiency course to 
become employed in a sworn position. 

6. After being granted an EOT, an applicant takes and fails the State Officer Certification 
Examination three times.  Can this person apply for a second EOT? 

No.  Chapter 943.1397(2), F.S., mandates that a person shall not take an officer 
certification examination more than three times unless the applicant has 
successfully completed a new basic recruit training program. 

7. After being granted an EOT, an applicant takes the SOCE one time before the 1 year 
time limit is reached and fails.  Can the applicant apply for a second EOT? 

Yes, as long as they are still eligible for the EOT.  However, they are still bound 
by Chapter 943.1397(2), F.S., and would only have two attempts to pass the 
SOCE under their new EOT. 

8. If a correctional probation basic recruit training program begins prior to July 1, 2010, is a 
BAT required? 

Yes.  Only those correctional probation basic recruit training programs starting on 
or after July 1, 2010, will not require a BAT prior to entry into the program. 

Please contact Terry Baker, Training and Research Manager in the Bureau of Standards, at 
telephone number (850) 410-8688 or your assigned field representative if you have questions. 

MDC/tb/djh 

cc: Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission Members 
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